
               

 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2013 - 7:30 p.m. 
 
City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.            
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                     
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  Lyle Achziger 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  John Morris 
 Council:  Laura Brown 
    Mark Clark 

 April Neibauer 
 Brian Rudy 
 Jay Schaffer 

 
 

4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are 
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.  
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement 
and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 5, 2013 
B. Resolution No. 28-2013—Designation of Public Place for Postings in the 

City of Evans 
C. Resolution No. 29-2013—Joint Use Agreement with District 6 
 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 

http://www.cityofevans.org/


7. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing—Resolution No. 29-2013 for USR Bell Supply 
B. Resolution No. 30-2013 - Supporting The Grant Application For A Local 

Parks And Outdoor Recreation Planning Grant From The State Board Of 
The Great Outdoors Colorado For The South Platte River Corridor Master 
Plan 

C. Public Hearing—New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Roma 
Restaurant 

D. Public Hearing—New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Lit’l Bit 
Bar&Grill 

 
 

8. REPORTS 
A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 
 

 
9. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 
 
Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures 
on addressing City Council. 
 
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

A. For the purpose of discussing matters that may be subject to negotiations 
C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e). 

 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 

of the community.” 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  August 20, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 6.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes  
 
PRESENTED BY:  Raegan Robb, City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of August 5, 2013. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the consent agenda and the minutes as presented." 
  
 



MINUTES 
 EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
 Regular Meeting 
 August 5, 2013 - 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Achziger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  Mayor Achziger, Mayor Pro-Tem Morris, Councilmembers Brown, Clark, Neibauer, and 

Rudy. 
 
Absent:  Council Member Schaffer 
 
RECOGNITION 

A. July Yard of the Month–Lisa Wolfe, 3502 Belmont Street  
Mayor Achziger presented a sign and gift certificate to Zach Ratkai, City Building 
and Development Director, who received the award for July Yard of the Month on 
behalf of Lisa Wolfe.  

 
PROCLAMATION 

B. Community Safety & Awareness 
Mayor Achziger read the Proclamation and presented it to Chief Brandt, as well as 
Fran Hudgins and Pam Dorsey from the Evans Sam's Club.   

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to address the 
City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are recognized, please step to the 
podium, state your name and address then address City Council.   Your comments will be limited to two (2) 
minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your 
comments and suggestions under advisement and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff 
person for follow-up.  Thank you! 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Council Member Brown made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy to 
approve the agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 16, 2013 
B. Ordinance No. 565-13 Approving Riverside Library and Community Center  

   Lease Financing (Second Reading) 
 



C. Ordinance No. 566-13 Approving a Loan from the Colorado Water  
Resources and Power Development Authority for the Water Radio/Meter 
Upgrade Project (Second Reading) 

D. Ordinance No. 568-13 – 2nd Quarter Budget Revision (Second Reading) 
E. Agreement with Avi Rocklin for Prosecution Services 
F. Agreement with Krob Law Office for Legal Representation 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy to 
adopt the consent agenda. The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Ordinance 567-13 – Repealing and Reenacting Section 1.17 of Title 1 of the Evans 
Municipal Code (Second Reading) 

 
Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Director, provided an update on Ordinance         
567-13, which was heard on July 2nd 2013.  Mr. Ratkai discussed the need to update     
Section 1.17 of City Code concerning code enforcement and the procedures for staff to 
enforce code violations. 
  
Mr. Ratkai discussed the specific language changes between the first and second reading, 
talked about the option of revising the timeline for issuing violations, and discussed changes 
to the provisions guiding voluntary compliance agreements. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked about revisions by the Ordinance regarding staff personally 
delivering a violation notice to the property owner.    
 
Mr. Ratkai discussed the process for delivering violation notices to property owners and 
discussed the appeal timeline, which allows property owners 7 days following the citation to 
request an appeal. Mr. Ratkai explained that the citation process could be administered with 
the 7 day timeline.  
 
Mayor discussed his support for the changes implemented by the Ordinance.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 567-13 on Second Reading. The motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 
  

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution No. 27-2013 – Approving a Development Agreement Between the City of  

Evans and the Village at Ashcroft LLC, for Ashcroft Park Apartments. 
 

Fred Starr, City Public Works Director, addressed City Council to present the Resolution 
concerning the approval of a development agreement for Ashcroft Park Apartments. Mr. 
Starr discussed recent amendments to the Development Agreement and explained the reasons 
for the changes to City Council. 



 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked about the changes to the agreement related to “title and 
transfer.”  
 
Mr. Starr, explained that the provision under “title and transfer” on page seven of the 
agreement was removed, because it was covered by other provisions in the agreement. 
 
Mayor Achziger discussed his support for the project and thanked staff for their work on 
accomplishing the agreement. Mayor Achziger invited the applicant to speak to the 
agreement.   
 
The applicant, Scott Ehrlich, from 1414 32nd Avenue, Greeley, addressed City Council to 
discuss the project and specific provisions in the agreement.  
 
Mayor Achziger thanked Mr. Ehrlich for working with staff to accomplish the agreeement.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris discussed his support for the project. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to adopt 
Resolution 27-2013.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
  

B. Preliminary Budget Revision for Funding to Repair Non-Potable Irrigation Systems. 
 

Cameron Parrott, City Engineer, addressed City Council to discuss the need for a budget 
revision for repairs to the City’s non-potable irrigation systems. He explained that the City 
recently had two non-potable pump stations breakdown and discussed the need to improve 
these pump stations to prevent from using potable water in areas where non-potable water 
could be used. Mr. Parrott explained the City’s non-potable irrigation system and discussed 
the Chappelow pump station, and other ECC pump station. He explained that these two 
stations supply water to Chappelow Magnet School, Dos Rios Elementary School, 
Centennial Elementary School, Village Park, and the Evans Community Complex.  He stated 
that these areas consume large amount of water for irrigation purposes, and talked about the 
need for the City monitor potable water consumption due to our contractual obligations with 
the City of Greeley. He explained that returning these large areas to non-potable irrigation is 
critical to avoid paying system development charges to the City of Greeley for exceeding our 
treated water supply cap. 
 
Mayor Achziger asked when staff expected to have the repairs finished. 
Mr. Parrot explained that staff could begin on the project by the end of the month and have 
the project finished by the end of 2013. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked if the funding would be from the City Water Fund or the 
General Fund. 
 



Mr. Parrott explained that the budget revision would provide $30,000 from the City General 
Fund for a one-time purchase to repair these two stations. 
 
Council Member Clark asked when staff could begin the repairs on the two stations. 
 
Mr. Parrott explained that staff could begin working with local contractors and suppliers by 
the end of August. 
  
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked about the non-potable water lines in the City and about lines 
that are not connected to pump stations.  
 
Mr. Parrot and Aden Hogan, City Manager, explained that the budget request would address 
the short-term plan to improve the pump station. 
 
Mr. Hogan explained that the stations are part of the City’s Asset Management Plan (AMP), 
but there may be a long-term need for a separate fund to reserve revenue for ongoing 
maintenance to supply areas of the City with non-potable water. 
 
Council Member Rudy made the motion, seconded by Council Member Clark to approve the 
budget revision for non-potable system repairs.  The motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 

 
 

C. Project Award for 2013 Asphalt Overlay Project 
 

Mr. Parrott presented a request for Council to award a bid for the 2013 Asphalt Overlay 
Project for $144,612.05. He explained that the project would be funded through the City’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP). He also discussed the need for the project for surface 
repairs of streets within the community.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked Mr. Parrott to clarify which streets would receive the surface 
repair. 
 
Mr. Parrott, explained that this funding would be utilized on 11th Avenue between 34th Street 
and 32nd Street; and the intersection of 17th Avenue and 37th Street. 
 
Council Member Brown made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy to award the 
project to Martin Marietta Materials Inc. for the amount of $144,612.05. The motion passed 
with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

 
D.  Project Award for 2013 Chip Seal Project 

 
Mr. Parrot discussed the need for annual chip seal projects, which is funded through the 
2013 CIP Budget. He explained that the project would address areas on 17th Avenue 



between 42nd Street and 37th Street, and all of the roadways within the Hunters Reserve 
Subdivision. 
 
He stated that the project would cost $198,123.97, but explained that the project would 
allow costs savings since the contractor would be completing chip seal repairs in the City 
of Greeley. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Morris asked about the cost-sharing with the City of Greeley and the 
$1,000 mobilization fee for the project. 
  
Mr. Parrott explained that the project would allow the City to utilize an existing contract 
for chip seal services scheduled for the City of Greeley. 
 
Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to award 
the 2013 Chip Seal Project to A-1 Chipseal Co. The motion passed with all voting in 
favor thereof. 

 
REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
 
Aden Hogan, City Manager, distributed the City Manager’s Monitoring Report and discussed 
the groundbreaking for the High Plains Library on August 1, 2013. 
He talked about upcoming events for City, including: National Night Out on August 6th and 
the City Safety Event on August 10, 2013. 
 
B. City Attorney 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

 
Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures on 
addressing City Council. 
 
There was no audience participation  

 
 

  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
A. For the purpose of discussing matters that may be subject to negotiations C.R.S. 24-

6-402(4)(e).   
 

   At 8:08 p.m. Mayor Pro-Tem Morris made the motion, seconded by Council Member 
Clark, to go into Executive Session. The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
The Executive Session concluded at 9:23 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 
The meeting adjourned at 9:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare of the 

community.” 



 
 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:  August 20, 2013 
 
AGENDA NO.: 6.B 

 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 28-2013 - Designation of Public Place for the posting of 

notices of Public Meetings 
 
PRESENTED BY: Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This Resolution fulfills an annual requirement, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402, to designate a 
location for notices of all public meetings, which must be posted a minimum of 24 hours prior to 
the meeting. This resolution designates the bulletin board at the entrance to the City Council 
Chambers as the public posting place for the City of Evans. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of the resolution.  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “I move to adopt Resolution No. 28-2013.” 
 “I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 28-2013.”  



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO     
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 28-2013 
 
 

DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC PLACE FOR THE POSTING OF NOTICES OF 
PUBLIC MEETINGS IN THE CITY OF EVANS 
  

WHEREAS, C.R.S. 24-6-402 states that any meetings at which the adoption of any proposed 
policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or formal action occurs or at which a majority or 
quorum of the body is in attendance, or is expected to be in attendance, shall be held only after full 
and timely notice to the public; and 

 
WHEREAS, C.R.S. 24-6-402 provides that timely notice of any public meeting be posted in 

a designated public place within the boundaries of the local public body no less than 24 hours prior 
to the holding of any such meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.13 of the Home Rule Charter requires the agenda be posted or 

published 24 hours prior to any regular meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. 24-6-402 states that all public bodies are required to designate annually 
the place or places where such public meeting notices are to be posted. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

That notices of all public meetings requiring a minimum of 24 hours prior notice by posting 
at a designated public place pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402 shall be posted on the bulletin board at the 
entrance to the City Council Chambers, 1100 37th Street, Evans, Colorado. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Evans on this 20th day of August 20, 2013. 

 
 

ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
        By:      
 City Clerk              Mayor 

  



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  August 20, 2013  
 
AGENDA NO.: 6.C  

 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 29-2013 - Joint Use Agreement with School District 6  
 
PRESENTED BY: Brian Stone, Recreation Director  
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Annually, the City of Evans and Weld County School District 6 develop a joint use agreement for 
use of facilities owned and operated by each entity.  Attached is a copy of a formal agreement for 
2013 - 2014.  This is mutually beneficial to both governmental organizations and we have enjoyed a 
positive relationship with District 6 personnel. 
 
The agreement was approved and signed by the Superintendent of Schools. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
There is no cost to implement the agreement and there is reasonable equity by both parties by 
sharing facilities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the agreement. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to approve Resolution No. 29-2013. 
I move to deny approval of Resolution No. 29-2013.  
  































CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
  

RESOLUTION NO. 29-2013 
 

  
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOINT USE AGREEMENT FOR FACILITY USE 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF EVANS AND GREELEY-EVANS SCHOOL DISTRICT 6 
  

 WHEREAS, it’s in the best interest of the City to approve agreements, by Resolution; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the City of Evans (the City) and the Greeley-Evans School District 6 (the District) 
have various arrangements for use of various City and school facilities and there is a need to establish 
consistent policies and procedures to guide staff; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City has limited facilities for various recreational programs; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the District desire to maximize the use of each others facilities; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the District desire to work cooperatively to develop new facilities as 
the City population grows; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the District desire to keep operating and maintenance costs to a 
minimum for the benefit of taxpayers and users. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
  
 Section 1.  The City of Evans/Greeley-Evans School District 6 Joint Use Agreement is hereby 
approved. 
  
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Evans on this 20th day of August, 2013. 
 
   
ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO  
 
  
  
       By:      

City Clerk        Mayor 



1 
 

 
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: August 20, 2013  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  7.A 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Resolution No 30-2013 - Use by Special Review 

for Outdoor Storage on property zoned I-2 – 4101 Carson Avenue 
in Evans Colorado – (Bell Oil Supply) 

 
PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Manager 
 
  
 

 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  This is a request from the landowner (Borchert Pointe, LLC), for a 
Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage to exceed the allowed 20% in the City of 
Evans Municipal Code.  The owner originally requested to be approved to utilize up to 68% of 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Location: 4101 Carson Avenue  

 
Applicants: Todd Bloom, Tebo Development  

(representing Borchert Pointe, LLC, landowner) 
 Existing Land Use: Vacant 
  

Proposed Land Use: Office/Warehouse with Storage Yard  

 
Surrounding Land 
Use: 

North Industrial (McJunkin Redman)  

South Commercial (Vacant) 

East Commercial (Vacant)  

West Industrial (Non-conforming storage yard) 

Existing Zoning: Medium Industrial (I-2) 

Proposed Zoning: Same 
 
Surrounding 
Zoning: 

North  I-3  

South C-3 

East   C-3 

West   I-3 
Future Land Use 
Designation: 

 
Industrial Business Park 

 



2 
 

the site for outdoor storage, since the Planning Commission hearing on August 5th, the request 
has been changed to utilize up to 60% as outdoor storage.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend approval with conditions in order to meet the criteria for 
the approval of the special use.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 5, 
2013 and recommended approval with conditions.  The condition to allow the outdoor storage 
standard to be exceeded for a five (5) year period with an automatic expiration at the end of 
the five (5) years. Staff is recommending some screening and landscaping as conditions of 
approval as well.
 
ANALYSIS: 
 

1. Background: In the spring of 2013, Borchert Pointe, LLC (land owners) approached the 
city with the plan to construct an office/warehouse building to serve as the Evans base 
for Bell Supply. As part of this plan, a site plan was submitted and is currently under 
administrative review by staff. The zoning for the site limits allowed outdoor storage to 
20% of the total site area. The site plan, and intentions for the property, show a storage 
yard.  The applicant is requesting a Use by Special Review approval to allow outdoor 
storage in excess of that allowed in an I-2 zone – 20% is the allowed amount of outdoor 
storage, the request is for 68%. 
 

2. Section 19.04, 19.32 19.44 and 19.48 of the Evans Municipal Code: 
Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code addresses accessory uses and in particular outdoor 
storage.  The proposed outdoor storage is over 20% of the property and therefore 
requires a USR approval in accordance with Section 19.44.   

 
19.48.055 Outdoor storage. 
Except by approval of a Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 19.44 of 
the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall only be allowed as an accessory use in the I – 
Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the following limitations: 

A. No more than 10 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-1 – Light Industrial – 
zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 
B. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 
C. No more than 30 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-3 – Heavy Industrial 
– zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.  
(Ord. 350-05: Ord. 272-04) 
 

Below are the criteria for approval of a USR per Section 19.44.020. 
 
Chapter 19.44 
Approval of Special Uses 
 
19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   
 

A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that is not 
defined within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall within the 



3 
 

definition of any defined use in the Municipal Code, the property owner may apply for 
use by special review approval in accordance with this chapter. 
B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review 
requests: 
 

1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or 
welfare of the City or its residents. 
 
The use could certainly harm the welfare of the City and our residents by eliminating the 
compatibility with the commercially zoned properties to the south.  With heavy industrial 
use (60% outdoor storage) commercial uses to the south would be limited, which 
affects the long term financial sustainability of the City. 

 
2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax 

revenue, or other similar effects, as compared to the absence of the proposed 
use. 
 
This type of storage allotment is associated typically with heavy industrial use and is 
best located in areas of I-3 zoning that are well removed from the public right of way 
and away from commercial uses.  Even in the I-3 zone the code states 30% is the 
maximum for outdoor storage.  In urban areas such as the City of Evans, uses such as 
outdoor storage should be limited (as the code intended) in order to fulfill the goals of 
the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and long range planning and sustainability issues. 
 

3. The proposed use shall be consistent w ith the Evans Comprehensive Plan and 
shall be compatible w ith the surrounding area. 

 
The use is NOT consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan nor is it compatible with 
the surrounding area.  Much of the surrounding area is developed as industrial, with 
similar office/warehouse/storage use. The proposal from the applicant is a request to 
meet a similar standard to existing conditions in the area; however many of these sites 
are out of compliance.  The City is in the process of issuing notices of violation to the 
remaining land owners in violation of the outdoor storage code. 

 
4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use 

shall be compatible w ith the ex isting and proposed future land uses w ithin 
the general area in which the proposed use is to be located and w ill not 
create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be 
objectionable or detrimental to other permitted uses in the vicinity. 
Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review  to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 
 
The current and future land uses in that site are not compatible with outdoor storage of 
this intensity on this size of property.  It will create a situation/condition that will 
negatively affect other property owners in the area, especially the commercial properties 
to the south.  Additional screening throughout the perimeter and the requirement for a 
landscape bufferyard and a different kind of fencing will be required to mitigate impacts.   

 



4 
 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the proposed 
land use. 
 
The site is physically suitable for outdoor storage, except for the zoning, the 
compatibility with surrounding uses to the south (commercially zoned) and proximity to 
the public right of way. 

 
6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow  and parking in 

the neighborhood. 
 

The outdoor storage use proposed would not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in 
the area.  

 
7. The location of other approved uses by special review  in the neighborhood 

shall be determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
 
The applicant has pointed out that in the area; there are storage yards in which outdoor 
covers a substantial area of the property. However, the sites referenced are out of 
compliance with the Municipal Code. Staff is currently issuing letters of violation in the 
area to other land owners that may not be aware of the code related to outdoor 
storage.   
In consideration of surrounding uses, currently the approval on 1470 42nd Street is for 
up to 50%, and that was allowed as it could be screened from 42nd Street and was a 
much smaller piece of land, and hence a much smaller impact on the neighborhood.  
Most recently, 1461 43rd Street to the south of this property was approved to have 60% 
outdoor storage, with conditions placed on the property for the addition of substantial 
screening as well as a temporary, revocable time period during which excess storage 
would be allowed. Those approvals, which will stay for that legal description on that site, 
will remain in place and anything other would be an over concentration of the outdoor 
storage use in the area. 

 
Issues: 
 
The main concern with the application is the adjacency and compatibility with commercial and 
other industrial zoning.  42nd Street is a major thoroughfare for the City of Evans and therefore 
compatibility with existing industrial uses and future commercial uses is critical to the future 
development and sustainability of the City. With 60% of the lot being used for outdoor storage 
that issue becomes even more important to the long term compatibility issues in the 
neighborhood.   
 
The precedent set by allowing a Use by Special Review for additional outdoor storage in this I-2 
zone at this location could lead to other land owners requesting the same USR for the same 
reasons (business oriented).  That would essentially mean the land in this area would exceed 
even the highest use allowed in the I-3 zone (currently 30%). 
 
The land sits higher than the adjacent commercial lots along 42nd Street and no amount of 
screening allowed under the code would allow compatibility to exist with other uses in the area.  
There is no fence or landscaping allowed by the code that could be installed on site to improve 



5 
 

the compatibility for 42nd Street, the commercial properties to the north, and the Highway 85 
corridor to the east. 
 
Additionally, this land is zoned I-2 for a reason. The premise behind appropriate zoning includes 
the issues of land use.  Zoning permits certain uses on land and usually  move from the least 
intense uses to the most intense uses, protecting land and the public from more intense uses 
by placing that zoning away from areas of commercial, residential, or lower uses land zoning.  
The land uses should move from least significant impact to higher impact, especially along 
major arterials and areas of importance to the City. 
 
Other land in the area is zoned either I-1 or C-3 (lowest industrial zoning in our code, highest 
commercial zoning in our code, which would be compatible uses).  This land is visually adjacent 
to Highway 85, and also adjacent to other I-1 and C-3 sites that comply with the code. 
 
Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with Chapter 19.64 and 18.28.125 of 
the Municipal Code. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 
After reviewing the Bell Supply USR for outdoor storage that exceeds the 20% and a security 
residence on property located at 4101 Carson Avenue, the following findings of fact and 
conclusions have been determined: 
 

The review criteria in Sections 19.44 of the Evans Municipal Code CAN be appropriately and 
sufficiently met WITH CONDITIONS.  With conditions, approval of this special use would be 
consistent with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and with the surrounding land uses. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I recommend that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval with 
conditions of the requested USR with the findings and conclusions listed above as well as the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire on 
August 20, 2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration. Said renewal is 
not automatic and must be initiated by the property owner at the time of expiration or if 
the nature of the land use warrants review of the USR conditions approved herein, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet surrounding both 
the northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a twenty (20) foot 
landscape buffer on the rear of the property (review to be secured through the site plan 
process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall cedar 
privacy fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site plan.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
“I move to approve Resolution XX-2013 supporting the approval with conditions of the Bell 
Supply USR because it meets the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 
19.48 of the Municipal Code.” 



6 
 

 “I move to deny Resolution XX-2013 supporting the approval with conditions of the Bell Supply 
USR because it meets the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of 
the Municipal Code.” 
 
 









Chapter 19.44 1 Title 19  

Chapter 19.44 
 

APPROVAL OF SPECIAL USES 
 
Sections: 
 

19.44.010 Intent. 
19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review. 
19.44.030 Procedure for Special Use Permit. 
19.44.040 Business and Industrial Uses – Oil and Gas Well Locations – City Council 

Permission Prerequisite to Building Permit Issuance. 
19.44.050 Expiration Date. 
19.44.060 Fees. 
 
19.44.010 Intent.  The intent of this chapter is to require a public hearing for special land uses in 

order to determine if the use has the potential to adversely affect other land uses, transportation systems, 
public facilities, or the like, in the surrounding neighborhood thereby ensuring that uses by special 
review will not harm the health, safety, and welfare of the City and its residents. The City Council may 
disapprove any such request, or may impose such conditions and safeguards as may be required to 
maintain the intent of this zoning code. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00: Ord. 1027-96) 
 

19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   
A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that is not defined 

within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall within the definition of any defined use in 
the Municipal Code, the property owner may apply for use by special review approval in accordance 
with this chapter. 

B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review requests: 
1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or welfare of the City 

or its residents. 
2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax revenue, or other 

similar effects, as compared to the absence of the proposed use. 
3. The proposed use shall be consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan and shall be 

compatible with the surrounding area. 
4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use shall be 

compatible with the existing and proposed future land uses within the general area in 
which the proposed use is to be located and will not create significant noise, traffic, or 
other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other permitted 
uses in the vicinity. Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the proposed land use. 
6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in the 

neighborhood. 
7. The location of other approved uses by special review in the neighborhood shall be 

determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
8. Mini-storage units shall also comply with the following standards: 

a. Setbacks of buildings from all streets shall be a minimum of 25 feet. 
b. A 10-foot-wide buffer area of natural growth, including trees and shrubs approved by 

the City, shall be installed and maintained along the entire length of any boundary of 
the development that is adjacent to a residentially zoned district, whether or not such 
boundary is separated by a street, alley, or easement or other right-of-way. Such buffer 



Chapter 19.44 2 Title 19  

may, if required by the City, include a six-foot-high screen composed of natural or 
manmade materials. 

c. Landscaping plans must be presented with the application and must be approved by 
City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. Such plans must show the 
proposed types and locations of all natural plantings, ground coverings, and screening, 
including the size and number of trees. 

d. Architectural design plans and elevations must be presented with the application and 
must be approved by City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. 
Architectural plans and elevations must indicate the size and locations of all 
structures including the proposed exterior design and wall and roof coverings of the 
buildings. Architectural plans will be examined to ensure that the proposed 
development’s features such as height, length, facade, color, etc., are compatible with 
the surrounding area. 

e. No changes shall be made to an approved plan which would alter the character of the 
building(s) or use of the property without prior approval of the City Council. 

f. Special Permit. Special Permits for exceptions to the mini-storage requirements may 
be granted provided all of the following criteria are met: 
i. Such use is found to be compatible with the surrounding area; 

ii. Such use shall not adversely affect the surrounding area; 
iii. Such use shall not adversely affect the future development of the area; 
iv. Due to the proposed geographical location of such use or other physical situation 

of the land or building, practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship which has not 
been self imposed would deprive the owner/tenant of the property of the 
reasonable use of the site or portion of the site in question; and 

v. The purpose and intent of this code is maintained. 
g. Miscellaneous conditions within the "C" and "RC" zone districts: 

i. Within the mini-storage facility premises, uses such as distribution centers, 
assembly or manufacturing, retail sales, or any use other than storage is 
prohibited, with the exception of the sale or rental of accessory items typically 
used for moving, including, but not limited to, boxes, hand-trucks, and moving 
vans. 

ii. Fully screened, outdoor storage for recreational vehicles, boats, vacant trailers 
(excluding mobile homes), and similar items that are well maintained and in good 
condition may be approved as part of the mini-storage unit facility. Plans for such 
screening must have the approval of the City. The maximum area of such outdoor 
storage use shall not exceed 25 percent of the total site.  

9. Car wash facilities.  The Planning Commission and the City Council shall consider the 
following aspects of the proposed facility when reviewing a petition for a Use by Special 
Review for a car wash facility: 
a. Character of the area of the site, including proximity of residential property to the site 

and proximity of existing car wash facilities; 
b. Hours of operation; 
c. Presence or absence of a system for reclaiming and reusing water; 
d. Building height, including whether the facility would have the capability to service 

commercial vehicles and/or recreational vehicles (RVs); 
e. Site design, including orientation and distance of the wash bays to the nearest street; 
f. Any other factor(s) which could serve to mitigate or aggravate the undesirable aspects 

of car wash facilities.  
 
 



Chapter 19.44 3 Title 19  

10. Oil and gas facilities. Oil and gas facilities shall only be installed, erected, and/or 
constructed in accordance with Chapter 16.28, Oil and Gas Exploration and 
Development. Landscaping plans must be presented with the application and must be 
approved by City Council at the Use by Special Review hearing. Such plans must show 
the proposed types and locations of all natural plantings, ground coverings, and screening, 
including the size and number of trees. 
 (Ord. 446-08: Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 253-04: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.030 Procedure for Special Use Permits. The following procedure shall be followed by the 
applicant for a special use permit: 

A. Petition.  A petition in the form prescribed by the City shall be filed with the City Clerk and 
shall be accompanied by a letter explaining why the use should be permitted. The petition shall be signed 
by the owner of the property. 

B. Review – Planning Department.  The petition shall be reviewed by the Director of Public 
Works/Planning and the applicant shall be notified promptly of any deficiencies. 

C. Administrative Report.  Staff will prepare comments for use by the Planning Commission, 
addressing all aspects concerning the special permit, its conformance with the Evans Comprehensive 
Plan, sound land use planning practices, the standards contained in this chapter, and other such matters 
as the planning staff considers material to determination of the application. 

D. Planning Commission Review.  The Planning Commission shall give such weight as it deems 
appropriate to the testimony and comments offered by the public. The Planning Commission shall hold a 
public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council on the application.  

E. City Council Review.  After the Planning Commission makes a recommendation on the 
application, the City Council shall hold a public hearing and consider the application at a regular or 
special meeting within 30 days. The City Council shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove 
the special use request. Approval of the request shall be made by resolution, which shall be recorded at 
the office of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder. Approval and any conditions of approval shall “run 
with the land,” and shall apply to subsequent owners of the property, and shall not be transferable to any 
other property. 

F. Notice.  The public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council required 
by this chapter shall be held only after public notice has been given in accordance with Chapter 19.64 of 
the Evans Municipal Code.   

G. Revocation of Special Permits.  If, at any time, the owner or tenant of a property that has 
received a special use permit fails to comply with any condition of approval, or the application or 
testimony of an applicant is found to have been false or misleading, or the use differs from that which 
was approved, or the use causes legitimate complaints from others in the area of the use, the City 
Council may review the special use approval and may revoke such approval by resolution. (Ord. 349-05: 
Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.040 Business and Industrial Uses – Oil and Gas Well Locations – City Council Permission 
Prerequisite to Building Permit Issuance. 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to direct the location and regulate the use and construction of breweries, distilleries, livery stables, 
blacksmith shops, and foundries within the City limits. 

B. Notwithstanding any other provision in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to direct the location and regulate the use and construction of slaughterhouses and byproducts 
plants, packing houses, renderies, tallow candleries, bone factories, soap factories, tanneries, dehydrating 
plants, and dairies within the City limits. 
 
 



Chapter 19.44 4 Title 19  

C. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this zoning code, the City Council shall have the 
power to prohibit any offensive or unwholesome business or establishment, and also to prohibit the 
carrying on of any business or establishment in any offensive and unwholesome manner, within the City 
limits. 

D. Any business or establishment which can be or is classified as falling within those designated 
in subsections A through C of this section shall first obtain specific permission from the City Council 
through the special use process before a building permit may be issued. 

E. No building permit shall be issued for any building not in compliance with setbacks from any 
oil or gas well or ancillary equipment, as established in Chapters 15.48 and 16.28, as amended.  

F. No building permit shall be issued for any building not in compliance with setbacks from any 
abandoned oil or gas wells as established in Chapters 15.48 and 16.28, as amended, until and unless the 
applicant, by clear and convincing evidence, can demonstrate to the City Council that the well has been 
abandoned and plugged in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations and that the 
issuance of such permit will not endanger any person or property. The Council may require such 
independent tests and reports as it deems necessary prior to final consideration of such permit. If a 
permit is approved, the Council may impose such conditions as it deems necessary or advisable for the 
protection of persons and property. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.050 Expiration.  
A. Unless otherwise stated in the approving resolution, all special permits not exercised within 

six months from the date of the resolution shall become null and void.  
B. Approval of any special use that is discontinued for three or more consecutive months shall 

become null and void and such use shall not be allowed to recommence without again obtaining special 
use approval, unless otherwise stated in the approving resolution. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 

19.44.060 Fees. Each application for a special use permit shall be accompanied at the time of 
filing by a fee as established by City Council by resolution. The applicant shall also pay the cost of 
publication and notification of the public hearings in accordance with Chapter 19.64 of the Municipal 
Code. (Ord. 349-05: Ord. 331-05: Ord. 015-00) 
 
  



LOT  5B

LOT  28

LOT  27

LOT  26

LOT  25

3939
LOT  6

3817
LOT  7

3807

LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  1

3711  (1 -6)

LOT  35

LOT  30

3812

3808
LOT  B

3800
LOT  A

3714
LOT  6

LOT  4

LOT  1

LOT  3C

LOT  3A

3710

3711

1400

LOT  33

LOT  34

LOT  32

LOT S 8-17

LOT  2

3901

3903

3717

3734

3736  (1 -4)

3730

3724

3718 /3 720
3711

3719

3721  (1 -4)

3723

3731

3817

3811

1502

3913

3995

3806

3810

3814

3818

3822

3826

3830

3834

1508

1507

3742

3738

3734

3730

37223721

3723

3727

3733

3739

1515

3805

3811

3815

3831

3827

3823

1501

1470
1600

LOT S 15-1 7LOT  13

LOT  3

LOT  19

LOT  18

LOT  17

LOT  16

LOT  15

LOT  14

LOT  13

LOT  18LOT  17LOT  16LOT S 14 &  15

LOT  12

LOT  11

LOT S 8-10

LOT  5 LOT  2LOT  3

LOT  1

LOT S 8-11

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT S 1-4

LOT S 1-2

LOT  4

LOT S 2 &  3

LOT  1

LOT  7

LOT  6LOT  5

LOT  10 LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7

LOT  6LOT  5

LOT  55 LOT  54 LOT  53 LOT  52 LOT  51 LOT  50 LOT  49 LOT  48

LOT  47

LOT  46

LOT  45

LOT  44LOT  43LOT  42LOT  41

LOT  30 LOT  29 LOT  28
LOT  27

LOT  26

LOT  25

LOT  24

LOT  23

LOT  21

LOT  22

LOT  20

LOT  11 LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  17 LOT  16 LOT  15 LOT  14 LOT  13 LOT  12

LOT  11LOT  10LOT  9LOT  8LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  17 LOT  16 LOT  15 LOT  14 LOT  13 LOT  12

LOT  11LOT  10LOT  9LOT  8LOT  7LOT  6

1605

1610 1602

1528

1524

1520
1521

1525

1529

1533

1537

LOT  18

LOT  17

LOT  16

LOT  15

LOT  14

LOT  11
LOT  10

LOT  9

LOT  8

LOT  7LOT  6

LOT  5C

151815201522160016021604

151915211523160116031605

151815201522160016021604

151915211523160116031605

15161518152015221600160216041606

1605 1603 1601 1523

3905

1600
16021604

3909

3913

3917

3921

3925

1605

1610 1606

4001

4005

16071611

1608 1604

4103

4107

16051609

1607 1603

4111

1606

LOT  9 LOT  8

LOT  31LOT  29

3951
LOT  5A

3710  (1 -4)

LOT S 1,  2  &  18 -24

LOT  2A

LOT  1 LOT  2

3705

3721

3723

3725

3815

4101

4303

4235

4405

3723

3725

3729

922

4009

4013

4019

4025

4113

4105

4129

3819

3819  IDAH O ST

4009

4015

4004

4008

4012

4014

919

4123

4103
4102

4106

4108

4114

4116

4201

4203

4205

4207

4209

4211

4215

4213

LOT  8

LOT  7

LOT  6

LOT  5

LOT  4

LOT  3

LOT  2

LOT  1

1112

LOT  1A

LOT  1

LOT  2B

1112
LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  1
1100

4200  (1 -4)

3946 /3 948 /3 950

3901

1221
1229 /1 225

4245

4265

4301

4320

4415 /4 417 /4 419

4240

4244

LOT S 19-2 2

1005 /1 007 /1 009 /1 011
1013 /1 015 /1 017

1425

1 2

3 4

5

6

1280 /1 320 /1 330 /1 340

4333

4311

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  1LOT  2

LOT  3 LOT  4

LOT  4LOT  3LOT  2

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT  1

LOT  2LOT  1

3810 /3 812
LOT  2

LOT  1
3800 /3 802 /3 804 /3 806

3801

3807

3809

3901  ST AT E ST

3919  ST AT E ST

LOT  1A
9221004

4301  D ENVER ST

LOT S 9-11

LOT  1

LOT  1

LOT  2

LOT S 1-2

LOT  8

LOT  10

LOT S 12-1 8LOT S 19-2 5

LOT S 35-3 6

LOT S 33-3 4

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 1-6

924926
930

LOT  20

LOT  6

LOT S 16-1 7

LOT S 12-1 5

LOT S 7-11

LOT S 28-2 9

LOT S 26-2 7

LOT S 18-1 9

3801

4201

4315

4325

4401

4645

4650

4651
LOT S 1-2

4720

1580

4420
LOT  13

1350
1510

4431
LOT S 1,  2  &  18 -24

LOT  1

4611

4321

4307

LOT  32
1200

124012801332

4316

LOT  28
1460

4322

4380

4400

4318

LOT  124314
1502

XXXX

1480

1479 1475 1473

LOT  18

14781478 1474 1472

4317

4351

LOT  13
1490

4329

4327

3951 3941 3931
3921

3961
39713981

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

15

16

3805

LOT  2

LOT  3

LOT  4

4105 /4 107 /4 109 /4 111

4113 /4 115 /4 117 /4 119

4131 /4 133
4135 /4 137

4139 /4 141
4143 /4 145

1310

4115

1461
(U nits 1 &  2 )

4001
LOT  2

LOT  1

PAR CEL B

TRAC T A

OU
TL

O
T 

A

LOT S 15-1 8
4133

OUT LO T  B

LOT  30

OU
TL

O T  A

OU
T L

O T  A

LOT S 7-8

LOT S 9-10

LOT S 11-1 2

LOT S 13-1 4

LOT S 15-1 6

LOT S 17-1 8

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 25-2 6

LOT S 23-2 4

LOT S 21-2 2

LOT S 19-2 0

LOT S 29-3 0

LOT S 27-2 8

LOT S 5-6

LOT S 7-9

LOT S 13-1 4

LOT S 15-1 6

LOT S 17-1 8

LOT S 7-18

LOT S 10-1 2

LOT S 24-2 5

LOT S 21-2 3

LOT S 28-2 9

LOT S 26-2 7

LOT S 7-18

LOT  1

LOT S 5-6

LOT S 35-3 6

LOT S 33-3 4

LOT S 31-3 2

LOT S 25-2 6

LOT S 23-2 4

LOT S 21-2 2

LOT S 29-3 0

LOT S 27-2 8

LOT S 19-2 0

(5

(6
(7

(12

(11

(10

(8

(21

(24

(2

(5

OUT LO T   B

LOT  1

(5

(2
(1

(4

(3

(1

(2

(3

(1

3900

(2

(1 (1

(1

(2

(1

(3

(1

(3

(1

(2

(2

(1

(143

(4

(3

(11 2
(111 (11 0

(11 8(11 7

(11 8

(131

(1

(75

(36

(76

3715

3940

1111

39513951

LOT  2
4049

4000

1501

(35

(26

(25

LOT  1
1104

xxxx
LOT  6 LOT  4

1481

3811
IDAH O ST

1 2 3 4

85 6 7

3811

4301

1504 /1 506
LOT  2

LOT  14
1572

XXXX
LOT  7
XXXX

Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

42nd St
US

 H
wy

 85

43rd St

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

40th St

44th St

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

Ind
ust

rial
 Pkw

y
38th St

Ida
ho

 St
Sta

te 
St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

39th St

41st St

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

Sa
n J

ua
n C

ir

39th St

43rd St

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

4101 Carson
Ave

    Aerial Map        Aerial Map    
4101 Carson Avenue



Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

Commercial

Industrial - Business Park

River Habitat

Residential - Urban Neighborhood

Open Space

Residential - High Density

37th St

42nd St
US

 H
wy

 85

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

40th St

38th St

Bran
tner R

d

44th St

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

39th St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

38th St Rd

41st St

41st St Rd

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

40th St Ct

La
tha

m 
Av

e

Va
lm

on
t S

t

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

39th St
Bu

rlin
gto

n A
ve

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

    Future Land Use Map        Future Land Use Map    

4101 Carson Ave

4101 Carson Avenue



I-1

I-3

I-1

I-1

R-1

I-3
R-1

C-3

I-2

C-3

R-1

C-3
R-1

RC

R-1

R-3

I-2

R-1

R-3

R-1

C-3

I-2

R-2

R-1

R-2

R-3

C-3
R-3
R-2

R-1

Evans
Community

Complex

Ix

37th St

42nd St

US
 H

wy
 85

Ca
rso

n A
ve

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

40th St

38th St

44th St

Bran
tner R

d

Pr
iva

te 
Dr

39th St

St
. V

rai
n S

t

38th St Rd

41st St

41st St Rd

Va
lm

on
t S

t

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

40th St Ct

15
th 

Av
e

Ca
rso

n C
t

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

39th St

US
 Hw

y 8
5

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

IEvans
City Limits

LegendLegend

Project Site

    Zoning Map        Zoning Map    

4101 Carson Ave

4101 Carson Avenue



 

 



 







1 
 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
EVANS PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
August 5, 2013 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Bisel called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  
Chairman Randall Bisel,  
Vice-Chairman Mark Brothe,  
Commissioner Robert S. Phillips III,  
Commissioner Jerry Numoto,  
Commissioner Conrad Grigson. 
 
Absent:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Phillips motioned, seconded by Vice Chairman Brothe to approve the, 
May 9, 2013, Minutes as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
The Agenda was approved unanimously with no changes. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS  
 

A. Public Hearing – Resolution No xx-2013 - Use by Special Review for Outdoor 
Storage on property zoned I-2 – 4101 Carson Avenue in Evans Colorado – (Bell 
Oil Supply) 



2 
 

 

PRESENTED BY: N. Zach Ratkai, Building and Development Manager 

 

ACTION:   Recommendation to City Council 

 

CITY COUNCIL DATE: Tuesday, August 20, 2013  

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This is a request from the landowner (Tebo Development), 
for a Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage to exceed the allowed 20% in 
the City of Evans Municipal Code.  The owner would like to be approved for 68% of the 
land as outdoor storage.   

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Location: 4101 Carson Avenue  

 

Applicants: 
Todd Bloom, Tebo Development  

 Existing Land Use: Vacant 

 
 

ProposedLandUse: 
Office/Warehouse with Storage Yard  

 

Surrounding Land 

Use: 

North Industrial (McJunkin Redman)  

South Commercial (Vacant) 
East Commercial (Vacant)  
West Industrial (Non-conforming storage yard) 

Existing Zoning: Medium Industrial (I-2) 
ProposedZoning: Same 

 

Surrounding 

Zoning: 

North  I-3  

South C-3 
East   C-3 
West   I-3 

Future Land Use 

Designation: 

 

Industrial Business Park 

 



3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval with conditions in order to meet the 
criteria for the approval of the special use.  The Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on January 8, 2013 and recommended approval with conditions.  The condition 
was for a two year period with an automatic expiration at the end of the two years. Staff 
is recommending some screening and landscaping as conditions of approval as well.

ANALYSIS: 

1. Background: In the spring of 2013, Tebo Development (land owners) 
approached the city with the plan to construct an office/warehouse building to 
serve as the Evans base for Bell Oil Supply. As part of this plan, a site plan was 
submitted and is currently under administrative review by staff. The zoning for the 
site limits allowed outdoor storage to 20% of the total site area. The site plan, and 
intentions for the property, show a storage yard.  He is requesting a Use by 
Special Review approval to allow outdoor storage in excess of that allowed in an 
I-2 zone – 20% is the allowed amount of outdoor storage, the request is for 68%. 
 

2. Section 19.04, 19.32 19.44 and 19.48 of the Evans Municipal Code: 
Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code addresses accessory uses and in particular 
outdoor storage.  The proposed outdoor storage is over 10% of the property and 
therefore requires a USR approval in accordance with Section 19.44.   

 

19.48.055 Outdoor storage. 

Except by approval of a Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 
19.44 of the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall only be allowed as an accessory use 
in the I – Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the following 
limitations: 

A. No more than 10 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-1 – Light 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 

B. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage. 

C. No more than 30 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-3 – Heavy 
Industrial – zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.  

(Ord. 350-05: Ord. 272-04) 

Below are the criteria for approval of a USR per Section 19.44.020. 

Chapter 19.44 

Approval of Special Uses 



4 
 

19.44.020 Criteria for Use by Special Review.   

A. All special uses are listed within each zoning district. If a use is proposed that 
is not defined within the Evans Municipal Code and does not reasonably fall 
within the definition of any defined use in the Municipal Code, the property owner 
may apply for use by special review approval in accordance with this chapter. 

B. Criteria. The following criteria shall be used to evaluate use by special review 
requests: 

1. The proposed use is found to be unlikely to harm the health, safety, or 
welfare of the City or its residents. 
 

The use could certainly harm the welfare of the City and our residents by 
eliminating the compatibility with the commercially zoned properties to the south.  
With heavy industrial use (68% outdoor storage) commercial uses to the south 
would be limited, which affects the long term financial sustainability of the City. 

 

2. The proposed use would benefit the City in terms of employment, tax 
revenue, or other similar effects, as compared to the absence of the 
proposed use. 
 
This type of storage allotment is associated typically with heavy industrial use 
and is best located in areas of I-3 zoning that are well removed from the public 
right of way and away from commercial uses.  Even in the I-3 zone the code 
states 30% is the maximum for outdoor storage.  In urban areas such as the City 
of Evans, uses such as outdoor storage should be limited (as the code intended) 
in order to fulfill the goals of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan and long range 
planning and sustainability issues. 
 

3. The proposed use shall be consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan 
and shall be compatible with the surrounding area. 

 

The use is NOT consistent with the Evans Comprehensive Plan nor is it 
compatible with the surrounding area.  Much of the surrounding area is 
developed as industrial, with similar office/warehouse/storage use. The proposal 
from the applicant is a request to meet a similar standard to existing conditions in 
the area; however many of these sites are out of compliance.  The City is in the 
process of issuing notices of violation to the remaining land owners in violation of 
the outdoor storage code. 

 



5 
 

4. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use shall be compatible with the existing and proposed future land uses 
within the general area in which the proposed use is to be located and will 
not create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that 
may be objectionable or detrimental to other permitted uses in the vicinity. 
Reasonable conditions may be placed on uses by special review to protect 
the public health, safety, and welfare by mitigating impacts. 
 
The current and future land uses in that site are not compatible with outdoor 
storage of this intensity on this size of property.  It will create a situation/condition 
that will negatively affect other property owners in the area, especially the 
commercial properties to the south.  Additional screening throughout the 
perimeter and the requirement for a landscape bufferyard and a different kind of 
fencing will be required to mitigate impacts.   

 

5. The site shall be physically suitable for the type and intensity of the 
proposed land use. 
 

The site is physically suitable for outdoor storage, except for the zoning, the 
compatibility with surrounding uses to the south (commercially zoned) and 
proximity to the public right of way. 

 

6. The proposed land use shall not adversely affect traffic flow and parking in 
the neighborhood. 

 

The outdoor storage use proposed would not adversely affect traffic flow and 
parking in the area.  

 

7. The location of other approved uses by special review in the neighborhood 
shall be determined, in order to avoid an over-concentration of such uses. 
 
The applicant has pointed out that in the area; there are storage yards in which 
outdoor covers a substantial area of the property. However, the sites referenced 
are out of compliance with the Municipal Code. Staff is currently issuing letters of 
violation in the area to other land owners that may not be aware of the code 
related to outdoor storage.   
In consideration of surrounding uses, currently the approval on 1470 42nd Street 
is for up to 50%, and that was allowed as it could be screened from 42nd Street 
and was a much smaller piece of land, and hence a much smaller impact on the 



6 
 

neighborhood.  Most recently, 1461 43rd Street to the south of this property was 
approved to have 60% outdoor storage, with conditions placed on the property 
for the addition of substantial screening as well as a temporary, revocable time 
period during which excess storage would be allowed. Those approvals, which 
will stay for that legal description on that site, will remain in place and anything 
other would be an over concentration of the outdoor storage use in the area. 

 

Issues: 

The main concern with the application is the adjacency and compatibility with 
commercial and other industrial zoning.  42nd Street is a major thoroughfare for the City 
of Evans and therefore compatibility with existing industrial uses and future commercial 
uses is critical to the future development and sustainability of the City. With 68% of the 
lot being used for outdoor storage that issue becomes even more important to the long 
term compatibility issues in the neighborhood.   

The precedent set by allowing a Use by Special Review for additional outdoor storage in 
this I-2 zone at this location could lead to other land owners requesting the same USR 
for the same reasons (business oriented).  That would essentially mean the land in this 
area would exceed even the highest use allowed in the I-3 zone (currently 30%). 

The land sits higher than the adjacent commercial lots along 42nd Street and no amount 
of screening allowed under the code would allow compatibility to exist with other uses in 
the area.  There is no fence or landscaping allowed by the code that could be installed 
on site to improve the compatibility for 42nd Street, the commercial properties to the 
north, and the Highway 85 corridor to the east. 

Additionally, this land is zoned I-2 for a reason. The premise behind appropriate zoning 
includes the issues of land use.  Zoning permits certain uses on land and usually  move 
from the least intense uses to the most intense uses, protecting land and the public from 
more intense uses by placing that zoning away from areas of commercial, residential, or 
lower uses land zoning.  The land uses should move from least significant impact to 
higher impact, especially along major arterials and areas of importance to the City. 

Other land in the area is zoned either I-1 or C-3 (lowest industrial zoning in our code, 
highest commercial zoning in our code, which would be compatible uses).  This land is 
visually adjacent to Highway 85, and also adjacent to other I-1 and C-3 sites that 
comply with the code. 

Notice of this public hearing was provided in accordance with Chapter 19.64 and 
18.28.125 of the Municipal Code. 



7 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 

After reviewing the Alpha and Omega USR for outdoor storage that exceeds the 10% 
and a security residence on property located at 1461 43rd Street the following findings 
of fact and conclusions have been determined: 
The review criteria in Sections 19.44 of the Evans Municipal Code CANbe appropriately 
and sufficiently met WITH CONDITIONS.  With conditions, approval of this special use 
would be consistent with the 2010 Comprehensive Plan nor with the surrounding land 
uses. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

I recommend that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval 
with conditions of the requested USR with the findings and conclusions listed above as 
well as the following conditions: 

1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire 
on August 20, 2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet 
surrounding both the northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a 
twenty (20) foot landscape buffer on the rear of the property (review to be 
secured through the site plan process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall 
cedar privacy fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site 
plan.  

 

Chairman Bisel opened the Public Hearing. Zach Ratkai, Building & Development 
Manager, presented the facts and findings and asked if there were questions of staff 
from the Commission. There were none.  

Todd Bloom, Director of Development with Tebo Development on behalf of the 
applicant, approached the podium.  Bell Supply is in the industrial plumbing industry. 
Mr. Bloom presented a landscape plan that would follow what the City is asking.  They 
have signed a 15 year lease with their tenant. He wants condition #1 removed. Brothe 
is concerned about the cedar fence. Todd is thinking about other materials to use. 
Brothe said he would like to see a metal fence like others down in that area. Brothe 
wanted to know who was putting in the street next to the property. Mr. Bloom stated the 
developer would be putting in the street. Grigson asked about number of employees 
with Mr. Bloom responding 6 to 10 employees for the site. Phillips wanted to know 
where the semis would be accessing the property. Brothe asked about the building 
size, with Mr. Bloom responding 12500 sf. Phillips asked about the possibility of 
allowing the outdoor storage use for an unlimited time. Ratkai stated the 5 year 
limitation on the use was standard with other outdoor storage USR’s in this area of the 



8 
 

city and that, since USR conditions run with the land, in 5 years the conditions of the 
USR can be revisited in order to see if the outdoor storage in excess of 20% is still 
feasible for the site. Bloom no one responded to the 500’ mailing.  

There were no further questions from the Planning Commission, Chairman Bisel then  
closed the public hearing.  

Brothe said the City needs to leave the 5 year condition in place and he doesn’t think 
they are using the right fencing material for the type of project.  Bisel felt a hail storm 
would destroy the metal fence.  Phillips said he thinks the 5 year condition should stay 
as well.  Mark Brothe moved for the forward a recommendation of approval with 
conditions to the City Council. The motion received a 2nd from Robert Phillips. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

The City Council hearing will be Tues, Aug 20 at 7:30pm. 

RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION MOTION: 

“Mr. Chairman, on the issue of the Bell Oil Supply Use by Special Review for outdoor 
storage, I move that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval 
with conditions to the Evans City Council because it meets the criteria outlined in 
Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of the Municipal Code.” 

 

“Mr. Chairman, on the issue of the Bell Oil Supply Use by Special Review for outdoor 
storage and a security residence, I move to recommend denial because it does not 
meet the criteria outlined in Sections 19.04, 19.32, 19.44 and Section 19.48 of the 
Municipal Code.” 

 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
 
There was not any audience participation. 

 
GENERAL DISCUSSION: 
 
Ratkai gave general staff updates. He told of ST moving to ED and Zach over CD.  
Randy’s last meeting. Conrad has BBQ planned Aug 22.  
 
ADJOURMENT: 
 
Chairperson Bisel adjourned the meeting at 6:38 p.m. 
 



  

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 30-2013 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW FOR OUTDOOR STORAGE 
IN EXCESS OF 20% ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4101 CARSON AVENUE IN 
EVANS COLORADO – BELL OIL SUPPLY  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans has received a request from Bell Supply (Borchert Pointe, LLC) owner, for 

a Use by Special Review (USR) for outdoor storage; and 
 
WHEREAS, this site location is zoned I-2, Medium Industrial; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 19.48.055. A of the City of Evans Municipal Code states:  “Except by approval of a 

Use by Special Review, granted in accordance with Chapter 19.44 of the Municipal Code, outdoor storage shall 
only be allowed as an accessory use in the I – Industrial – zoning districts and only in accordance with the 
following limitations: A. No more than 20 percent of the area of any lot or parcel in the I-2 – Medium Industrial – 
zoning district may be used for outdoor storage.”, and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed use is intended to provide outdoor storage for an existing business for Bell 

Supply; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and recommended approval with 

conditions of such request at its meeting on August 5, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing and has carefully reviewed the request and finds 
that such use meets the special permit criteria, and that it complies with the purpose of the zoning codes, and 
otherwise promotes the health, safety, and welfare of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS, 

COLORADO, that a special permit is hereby granted to allow outdoor storage that exceeds 20% of the property   
on the site with the following conditions: 

 
1. The approval for excess storage is for a period of five (5) years and will expire on August 20, 

2018, this approval period is renewable at time of expiration. Said renewal is not automatic and 
must be initiated by the property owner at the time of expiration or if the nature of the land use 
warrants review of the USR conditions approved herein, and;  

2. The approval is contingent upon a landscape buffer of fifteen (15) feet surrounding both the 
northern and southern sides of the subject property, and a twenty (20) foot landscape buffer on 
the rear of the property (review to be secured through the site plan process).  

3. The approval is contingent upon in installation of a fully opaque, six (6) foot tall cedar privacy 
fence to screen the storage yard as shown on the preliminary site plan.  
 
The site plan is shown on the attached Exhibit A: 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Evans on this 20th day of     August___ 2013. 
 
 

ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
        By:                                                       
 City Clerk        Mayor 



 2 Reso. xx-2013 

 
Exhibit A 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: August 20, 2013  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  7.B 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 31-2013 Supporting The Grant Application 

For A Local Parks And Outdoor Recreation Planning Grant 
From The State Board Of The Great Outdoors Colorado For 
The South Platte River Corridor Master Plan 

 
PRESENTED BY: Sheryl Trent, Community and Economic Dev. Director 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The City of Evans is requesting $75,000 from Great 
Outdoors Colorado to create a Master Plan for the South Platte River in Evans, 
Colorado.  The City Council has already appropriated $40,000 for this project, and the 
Request for Proposals have been released (due to be submitted by August 15, 2013).  
Staff was aware that the entire Master Plan would need additional funding, and this is 
the first time the appropriate grant - a planning grant from GOCO – was available 
during the funding cycle. 
 
This will require no additional financial capacity from the City, as our $40,000 budget 
will exceed the matching requirements from GOCO.  Any contracts will be approved by 
City Council. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
The City of Evans staff recommends that the City Council approve the application for 
matching grant for the South Platte River Corridor Trail Project in the amount of 
$75,000. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
I move to approve Resolution No. 31-2013 supporting the grant application for a local 
parks and outdoor recreation planning grant from the state board of the Great Outdoors 
Colorado for the South Platte River corridor master plan. 
 
I move to deny Resolution No. 31-2013 supporting the grant application for a local 
parks and outdoor recreation planning grant from the state board of the Great Outdoors 
Colorado for the South Platte River corridor master plan. 



 
CITY OF EVANS COLORADO 

 
Resolution No. 31-2013 

 
SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PARKS AND 

OUTDOOR RECREATION PLANNING GRANT FROM THE STATE BOARD OF 
THE GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO FOR THE SOUTH PLATTE RIVER 

CORRIDOR MASTER PLAN. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans is requesting $75,000 from Great Outdoors Colorado to 
create  a Master Plan for the South Platte River in Evans, Colorado; and 
 
WHEREAS, Great Outdoors Colorado requires that the City Council of the City of Evans 
state its support for the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for the South Platte 
River Corridor Master Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE City Council OF THE   
City of Evans THAT: 
 
Section 1: The City Council of the City of Evans strongly supports the application to 

Great Outdoors Colorado for the South Platte River Corridor Master Plan.  
 
Section 2:  The City Council of the City of Evans acknowledges that the grant 

application includes matching funds which the City of Evans is solely 
responsible to provide if a grant is awarded. 

 
Section 3: The City Council of the City of Evans has appropriated those matching 

funds and authorizes the expenditure of funds necessary to meet the terms 
and obligations of any Grant awarded. 

 
Section 4:  This resolution to be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval. 
 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Evans on this 20th day of August, 2013. 
 
        CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________     ___________________________ 
 City Clerk           Mayor 
 
 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   August 20, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  7.C   

 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing – New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for  
    Roma Restaurant 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Chris and Toni Allison, representing TAA Inc., dba Roma Restaurant, submitted an application on 
May 16, 2013, for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License located at 3625 23rd Avenue, Units 5-6.        
The nature of the proposed establishment is a restaurant with liquor service. This license was 
submitted for concurrent review with the City which allows the State to process the application while 
the City is also considering the application for adoption. 

 
This decision is before City Council, as the Local Licensing Authority, is for conditional approval of 
the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License. 

 
If the license is approved by City Council, the liquor license will be processed and finalized with the 
State Liquor Enforcement Division, with the understanding that the City Clerk will not issue the 
liquor license until the premises are properly inspected by all local authorities and the applicants 
have fulfilled all requirements to receive a Certificate of Occupancy and City Business License. 

 
Compliance with local regulations prior to receiving a liquor license is a requirement under     
Section 5.08.160 of the Evans Municipal Code and Section 12-47-312(4), C.R.S.  These sections are 
referenced below. 

 
Section 5.08.160 of the Evans Municipal Code states that “no license shall be issued, 

renewed or transferred unless the building in which the business or licensed activity is carried on 
meets all of the requirements of the zoning, building, electrical, plumbing, fire, mechanical, housing 
and dangerous building codes and if applicable the Weld County Health Department rules and 
regulations.” 

 
Section 12-47-312(4), of the Colorado Revised Statutes states that “no license shall be 

issued by any local licensing authority after approval of an application until the building in which the 
business is to be conducted is ready for occupancy with such furniture, fixtures, and equipment in 
place as is necessary to comply with the applicable provisions of this article and article 46 of this 
title, and then only after inspection of the premises has been made by the licensing authority to 
determine that the applicant has complied with the architect's drawing and the plot plan and detailed 
sketch for the interior of the building submitted with the application.” 

 
 



 
The preliminary findings and report submitted for this Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application is 
as follows: 
 

1) That the Notice of Public Hearing on this matter was posted on the property and 
publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on or before August 10, 2013. 

 
2) That the applicants are entitled to possession of the premises that the license applied 

for. 
 

3) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire, and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado. 

 
4) That the applicants have received a State Sales Tax License and the City has 

confirmed that the applicants have applied for a City Business and Sales Tax License. 
 

 5) The Fire Department and Building Department have indicated that before a 
Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the premises will be in compliance with the 
all applicable Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
6) That the building premises where selling or serving alcohol will be conducted does 

not appear to be within 500 feet of any public or parochial school or principal campus 
of any college, university or seminary. 

 
7) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius of the 

premises, there are the following licensed establishments in the City of Evans: 
 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 1 
   Beer and Wine 1  
   Club:   0 
   Retail Liquor Store: 4 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  3 
 
 

8) That within a one mile radius of the premises, there are the following licensed 
establishments in the City of Greeley: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 8 
   Beer and Wine 0  
   Club:   1 
   Retail Liquor Store: 0 
   Drugstore  1 
   Tavern:  1 
   3.2 Beer:  1 
 
 
 



 
11) That background investigations on all owners and managers identified by the 

application have been completed by the Evans Police Department.  
 
12) That there has not, within two years preceding the date of the application, been a 

denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local 
Licensing Authority for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application at the location 
for which application has been made for the reason that the reasonable requirements 
of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were satisfactory by the 
existing outlets. 

 
Before granting any license, the Local Licensing Authority shall consider the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, the moral character of 
the applicants and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicants. 
 
Attached is a memorandum from the Evans Police Department which shows the information 
that was found when they conducted their background checks. 
 
The applicants submitted petitions to conveying the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  
The petitions submitted reflect 20 signatures in favor of the proposed liquor license and there 
are no signatures showing opposition to the proposed liquor license. The petitions are 
attached. 

    
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The applicants have paid all State and City fees. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the applicants have submitted all the necessary information for a new liquor license 
application.  The State has also reviewed the application.  Council’s decision is based on information 
obtained at the Public Hearing. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move for the conditional approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for TAA Inc.,  
doing business as Roma Restaurant.” 
 
"I move to deny the approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for TAA Inc., dba Roma  
Restaurant for the following reasons . . ." 
 
 



 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 
Liquor Hearings 

 
A. Mayor opens Public Hearing. 

 
B. City Staff gives report. 

 
C. Applicant presents his/her position. 

 
D. Mayor asks to hear from anyone in the audience who wishes to speak    

  in support of the issue.* 
 

E. Mayor asks to hear from anyone in the audience who wishes to speak    
  in opposition of the issue.* 

 
F. Mayor asks applicant for any rebuttal 
 
G. Mayor asks Council if there are any questions that need clarified that    

  were brought up during the Public Hearing. 
 

H. Mayor closes the Public Hearing. 
 

I. Mayor asks for Council discussion. 
 
J. Council will then take action on the issue.  
 

Per Section 12-47-311 of the Liquor Code: 
At the public hearing held pursuant to this section, any party in interest shall be allowed to present evidence and to cross-
examine witnesses.  As used in this subsection, "party in interest" means any of the following: 
 
(I)    The applicant; 
(II)   An adult resident of the neighborhood under consideration; 
(III)  The owner or manager of a business located in the neighborhood under consideration; 
(IV)  The principal or representative of any school located within five hundred feet of the premises for which a malt, vinous, or  
        spirituous liquor license is under consideration. 
 
*The local licensing authority, in its discretion, may limit the presentation of evidence and cross-examination so as to 
prevent repetitive and cumulative evidence or examination. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prevent a representative of an organized neighborhood group that encompasses 
part or all of the neighborhood under consideration from presenting evidence subject to this section. Such representative shall 
reside within the neighborhood group's geographic boundaries and shall be a member of the neighborhood group. Such 
representative shall not be entitled to cross-examine witnesses or seek judicial review of the licensing authority's decision. 













 
I, Scott Gessler, as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the
records of this office,  

TAA, INC.  
is a Corporation formed or registered on 02/01/2013 under the law of Colorado, has complied with all
applicable requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office.  This entity has been
assigned entity identification number 20131077675. 
This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper
through 08/14/2013 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically
through 08/15/2013 @ 22:34:41. 
I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, authenticated,
issued, delivered and communicated this official certificate at Denver, Colorado on 08/15/2013 @
22:34:41 pursuant to and in accordance with applicable law.  This certificate is assigned Confirmation
Number 8617257.

 

 
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 
 

CERTIF ICATE  

  
_____________________________________ 

*********************************************End of Certificate******************************************** 
 

Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective.  However, 
as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Certificate Confirmation Page of 
the Secretary of State’s Web site, http://www.sos.state.co.us/biz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the certificate’s confirmation number 
displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed.  Confirming the issuance of a certificate is merely optional and is not 
necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate.  For more information, visit our Web site,  http://www.sos.state.co.us/ click Business 
Center and select “Frequently Asked Questions.” 
 

CERT_GS_D Revised 08/20/2008

Secretary of State of the State of Colorado







 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS, LICENSING AUTHORITY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 
 

                    
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND REPORT UPON APPLICATION 

FOR A NEW HOTEL/RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE 
              
IN RE: 
 
TAA Inc.  
dba Roma Restaurant  
3625 23rd Avenue, Units 5-6  
Evans CO 80620 
               

TO THE APPLICANT NAMED ABOVE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 

Pursuant to Colorado Revise Statutes, 12-47-312(1), you are hereby advised that with  
regard to your application for a new Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License, an investigation has 
been made, and based on the results thereof, the following has been determined: 

 
 

1) That the application was filed on May 16, 2013. 
 

2) That the Notice of Public Hearing on this matter was posted on the property and 
publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on or before August 10, 2013. 

 
3) That there has not, within two years preceding the date of your application, been a 

denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local Licensing 
Authority of the City of Evans for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application at the 
location for which application has been made for the reason that the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were 
satisfactory by the existing outlets. 

 
4) That it appears from the evidence submitted by you that you will be entitled to 

possession of the premises where you propose to exercise the license applied for. 
 

5) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire, and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   

 
6) That the Sales Tax Division indicates that this taxpayer has applied for a state sales  

tax license and also applied for a City sales tax license. 
 

7) That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection 
Department indicate that before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the 
premises will be in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
8) That the building where you propose to exercise the privilege of selling or serving 

alcohol does not appear to be in violation of the 500 foot limitation from any public or 
parochial school or principal campus of any college, university or seminary.  

 



 
9) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius where you 

propose to sell alcohol by the drink to customers for consumption on the premises, 
there are the following licensed establishments in the City of Evans: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 1 
   Beer and Wine 1  
   Club:   0 
   Retail Liquor Store: 4 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  3 
 

10) That within a one mile radius where you propose to sell alcohol by the drink to 
customers for consumption on the premises, there are the following licensed 
establishments in the City of Greeley: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 8 
   Beer and Wine 0  
   Club:   1 
   Retail Liquor Store: 0 
   Drugstore  1 
   Tavern:  1 
   3.2 Beer:  1 
 
    

 11) That background investigations on all owners and managers identified by the 
application have been completed by the Evans Police Department, and the        
August 13, 2013 memorandum from Rick Brandt, Evans Chief of Police, is attached. 

 
12) That the Public Hearing on your application will be held on Tuesday,                 

August 20, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. at the Evans Community Complex, Council Chambers, 
1100 37th Street, Evans CO.  At said hearing, you will have an opportunity to be 
heard regarding all matters related to your application, including all matters herein 
set forth. 

 
 

You are advised to obtain and read a copy of the State of Colorado Liquor Code which can be 
obtained by visiting the following website: www.colorado.gov/revenue/liquor. 
 
You are also advised to read Chapter 5.08, Alcoholic Beverages of the Evans Municipal Code which 
was distributed as part of your liquor packet.  If you need to obtain another copy, please contact the 
City Clerk at: (970) 475-1104 or visit the City's website at:  www.cityofevans.org. 
 
 
Dated this 15 h day of August 13, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Raegan Robb 
City Clerk 











From: Ann Molter
To: Raegan Robb
Subject: TAA/dba Roma Restaurant
Date: Thursday, August 15, 2013 11:22:34 AM

Hi Raegan,
 
TAA Inc (dba Roma Restaurant, acct 2602739) has a business license application currently under
review.
 
Kind Regards,

Ann Molter
Assistant Tax Clerk
Finance Department
City of Evans
amolter@ci.evans.co.us
Phone: (970) 475-1105
Fax: (970) 475-1194
 

 

mailto:/O=CITY OF EVANS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AMOLTER
mailto:RRobb@evanscolorado.gov
mailto:amolter@ci.evans.co.us
































 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   August 20, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  7.D   

 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing – New Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for  
    Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Debra Nelson and Barbara Solivais, representing Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill, LLC, dba Lit’l Bit Bar & 
Grill, submitted an application on July 17, 2013, for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License located at 
3620 35th Avenue, Units 6-8. The nature of the proposed establishment is a restaurant and bar with 
liquor service. This license was submitted for concurrent review with the City which allows the State 
to process the application while the City is also considering the application for adoption. 

 
This decision is before City Council, as the Local Licensing Authority, is for conditional approval of 
the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License. 

 
If the license is approved by City Council, the liquor license will be processed and finalized with the 
State Liquor Enforcement Division, with the understanding that the City Clerk will not issue the 
liquor license until the premises are properly inspected by all local authorities and the applicants 
have fulfilled all requirements to receive a Certificate of Occupancy and City Business License. 

 
Compliance with local regulations prior to receiving a liquor license is a requirement under Section 
5.08.160 of the Evans Municipal Code and Section 12-47-312(4), C.R.S. 

 
Section 5.08.160 of the Evans Municipal Code states that “no license shall be issued, 

renewed or transferred unless the building in which the business or licensed activity is carried on 
meets all of the requirements of the zoning, building, electrical, plumbing, fire, mechanical, housing 
and dangerous building codes and if applicable the Weld County Health Department rules and 
regulations.” 

 
Section 12-47-312(4), of the Colorado Revised Statutes states that “no license shall be 

issued by any local licensing authority after approval of an application until the building in which the 
business is to be conducted is ready for occupancy with such furniture, fixtures, and equipment in 
place as is necessary to comply with the applicable provisions of this article and article 46 of this 
title, and then only after inspection of the premises has been made by the licensing authority to 
determine that the applicant has complied with the architect's drawing and the plot plan and detailed 
sketch for the interior of the building submitted with the application.” 

 
 
 



The preliminary findings and report submitted for this Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application is 
as follows: 
 

1) That the Notice of Public Hearing on this matter was posted on the property and 
publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on or before August 10, 2013. 

 
2) That the applicants are entitled to possession of the premises that the license applied 

for. 
 

3) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire, and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado. 

 
4) That the applicants have received a State Sales Tax License and the City has 

confirmed that the applicants have applied for a City Business and Sales Tax License. 
 

 5) The Fire Department and Building Department have indicated that before a 
Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the premises will be in compliance with the 
all applicable Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
6) That the building premises where selling or serving alcohol will be conducted does 

not appear to be within 500 feet of any public or parochial school or principal campus 
of any college, university or seminary. 

 
7) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius of the 

premises, there are the following licensed establishments in the City of Evans: 
 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 2 
   Beer and Wine 1  
   Club:   0 
   Retail Liquor Store: 3 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  2 
 
 

8) That within a one mile radius of the premises, there are the following licensed 
establishments in the City of Greeley: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 0 
   Beer and Wine 0  
   Club:   1 
   Retail Liquor Store: 0 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  2 
 
 
 
 



11) That background investigations on all owners and managers identified by the 
application have been completed by the Evans Police Department.  

 
12) That there has not, within two years preceding the date of the application, been a 

denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local 
Licensing Authority for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application at the location 
for which application has been made for the reason that the reasonable requirements 
of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were satisfactory by the 
existing outlets. 

 
Before granting any license, the Local Licensing Authority shall consider the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, the moral character of 
the applicants and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicants. 
 
Attached is a memorandum from the Evans Police Department which shows the information 
that was found when they conducted their background checks. 
 
The applicants submitted petitions to conveying the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  
The petitions submitted reflect 20 signatures in favor of the proposed liquor license and there 
are no signatures showing opposition to the proposed liquor license. The petitions are 
attached. 

    
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The applicants have paid all State and City fees. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the applicants have submitted all the necessary information for a new liquor license 
application.  The State has also reviewed the application.  Council’s decision is based on information 
obtained at the Public Hearing. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move for the conditional approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Lit’l Bit Bar &  
Grill, LLC, doing business as Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill 
 
"I move to deny the approval of the Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License for Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill,  
LLC, dba Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill for the following reasons . . ." 
 
 



 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 
Liquor Hearings 

 
A. Mayor opens Public Hearing. 

 
B. City Staff gives report. 

 
C. Applicant presents his/her position. 

 
D. Mayor asks to hear from anyone in the audience who wishes to speak    

  in support of the issue.* 
 

E. Mayor asks to hear from anyone in the audience who wishes to speak    
  in opposition of the issue.* 

 
F. Mayor asks applicant for any rebuttal 
 
G. Mayor asks Council if there are any questions that need clarified that    

  were brought up during the Public Hearing. 
 

H. Mayor closes the Public Hearing. 
 

I. Mayor asks for Council discussion. 
 
J. Council will then take action on the issue.  
 

Per Section 12-47-311 of the Liquor Code: 
At the public hearing held pursuant to this section, any party in interest shall be allowed to present evidence and to cross-
examine witnesses.  As used in this subsection, "party in interest" means any of the following: 
 
(I)    The applicant; 
(II)   An adult resident of the neighborhood under consideration; 
(III)  The owner or manager of a business located in the neighborhood under consideration; 
(IV)  The principal or representative of any school located within five hundred feet of the premises for which a malt, vinous, or  
        spirituous liquor license is under consideration. 
 
*The local licensing authority, in its discretion, may limit the presentation of evidence and cross-examination so as to 
prevent repetitive and cumulative evidence or examination. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prevent a representative of an organized neighborhood group that encompasses 
part or all of the neighborhood under consideration from presenting evidence subject to this section. Such representative shall 
reside within the neighborhood group's geographic boundaries and shall be a member of the neighborhood group. Such 
representative shall not be entitled to cross-examine witnesses or seek judicial review of the licensing authority's decision. 











 
I, Scott Gessler, as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the
records of this office,  

Lit'l Bit Bar & Grill, LLC  
is a Limited Liability Company formed or registered on 05/09/2013 under the law of Colorado, has
complied with all applicable requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office.  This
entity has been assigned entity identification number 20131285277. 
This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper
through 08/14/2013 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically
through 08/15/2013 @ 22:33:10. 
I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, authenticated,
issued, delivered and communicated this official certificate at Denver, Colorado on 08/15/2013 @
22:33:10 pursuant to and in accordance with applicable law.  This certificate is assigned Confirmation
Number 8617256.

 

 
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 
 

CERTIF ICATE  

  
_____________________________________ 

*********************************************End of Certificate******************************************** 
 

Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective.  However, 
as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Certificate Confirmation Page of 
the Secretary of State’s Web site, http://www.sos.state.co.us/biz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the certificate’s confirmation number 
displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed.  Confirming the issuance of a certificate is merely optional and is not 
necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate.  For more information, visit our Web site,  http://www.sos.state.co.us/ click Business 
Center and select “Frequently Asked Questions.” 
 

CERT_GS_D Revised 08/20/2008

Secretary of State of the State of Colorado





 
 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS, LICENSING AUTHORITY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 
 

                    
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND REPORT UPON APPLICATION 

FOR A NEW HOTEL/RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE 
              
RE: 
 
Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill, LLC  
dba Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill  
3620 35th Avenue Units 6-8 
Evans CO 80620 
               

TO THE APPLICANT NAMED ABOVE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 

Pursuant to Colorado Revise Statutes, 12-47-312(1), you are hereby advised  that with 
Regard to your application for a new Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License, an investigation has 
been made, and based on the results thereof, the following has been determined: 
 

 
1) That the application was filed on July 17, 2013. 

 
2) That the Notice of Public Hearing on this matter was posted on the property and 

publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on or before August 10, 2013. 
 

3) That there has not, within two years preceding the date of your application, been a 
denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local Licensing 
Authority of the City of Evans for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License application at the 
location for which application has been made for the reason that the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were 
satisfactory by the existing outlets. 

 
4) That it appears from the evidence submitted by you that you will be entitled to 

possession of the premises where you propose to exercise the license applied for. 
 

5) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire, and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   

 
6) That the Sales Tax Division indicates that this taxpayer has applied for a state sales  

tax license and has also applied for a City sales tax license. 
 

7) That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection    
Department indicate that before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the 
premises will be in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
8) That the building where you propose to exercise the privilege of selling or serving 

alcohol does not appear to be in violation of the 500 foot limitation from any public or 
parochial school or principal campus of any college, university or seminary.  

 



9) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius where you 
propose to sell alcohol by the drink to customers for consumption on the premises, 
there are the following licensed establishments in the City of Evans: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 2 
   Beer and Wine 1  
   Club:   0 
   Retail Liquor Store: 3 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  2 
 

10) That within a one mile radius where you propose to sell alcohol by the drink to 
customers for consumption on the premises, there are the following licensed 
establishments in the City of Greeley: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 0 
   Beer and Wine 0  
   Club:   1 
   Retail Liquor Store: 0 
   Drugstore  0 
   Tavern:  0 
   3.2 Beer:  2 
 
    

 11) That background investigations on all owners and managers identified by the 
application have been completed by the Evans Police Department, and the        
August 13, 2013 memorandum from Rick Brandt, Evans Chief of Police, is attached. 

 
12) That the Public Hearing on your application will be held on Tuesday,                 

August 20, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. at the Evans Community Complex, Council Chambers, 
1100 37th Street, Evans CO.  At said hearing, you will have an opportunity to be 
heard regarding all matters related to your application, including all matters herein 
set forth. 

    
 

You are advised to obtain and read a copy of the State of Colorado Liquor Code which can be 
obtained by visiting the following website: www.colorado.gov/revenue/liquor. 
 
You are also advised to read Chapter 5.08, Alcoholic Beverages of the Evans Municipal Code which 
was distributed as part of your liquor packet.  If you need to obtain another copy, please contact the 
City Clerk at: (970) 475-1104 or visit the City's website at:  www.cityofevans.org. 
 
 
Dated this 15th day of August 13, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Raegan Robb 
City Clerk 
 

http://www.colorado.gov/revenue/liquor
http://www.cityofevans.org/


QRS

QRS

QRS

QRS

ÑÓ

T¢R/H

¢R/H
¢R/H¢

R/H

¢R/H

¢R/H¢R/H ¢R/H

¢R/H

¢R/H ¢R/H ¢R/H ¢R/H

R

RR

Q

Q Q

R

R R

S

S S
DEFG

¢
¢

R
R

/

/

H
H R

R
R

35
th

 A
ve

US Highway 34

23
rd

 A
ve

37th St

GREELEY MALL

WALMART

42nd St

Evans City Limits

Legend    
Retail Liquor
Stores (Off
Premises)

_̂
One-Mile Radius

R
Giuseppe's Ristorante
Italiano

      Vicinity Map            Vicinity Map      
3620 35th Avenue3620 35th Avenue

Units 6-8 andUnits 6-8 and
SurroundingSurrounding

Liquor LicensesLiquor Licenses

License Type   

3.2 Beer (Off
Premises)QRS

Club (On
Premises)ÑÓ

Beer/Wine
(On Premises)DEFG

¢R/H Hotel/Restaurant
(On Premises)
Drugstore
(Off Premises)xR

_̂

3620 35th Avenue

I

R







From: Ann Molter
To: Raegan Robb
Subject: Lit"l Bit Bar & Grill
Date: Thursday, August 15, 2013 11:24:01 AM

HI Raegan,
 
Lit’l Bit Bar & Grill (acct. #2602765) has a business license application currently under review.
 
Kind Regards,

Ann Molter
Assistant Tax Clerk
Finance Department
City of Evans
amolter@ci.evans.co.us
Phone: (970) 475-1105
Fax: (970) 475-1194
 

 

































 
 

 
City Manager    

Monitoring Report 
August 15, 2013 

 
Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new or have changed since the last 
City Council meeting. 

 
• Wellness Program Update 

We had 68 participants complete the 3rd phase of the City’s wellness program and 
are scheduled to receive the $200 cash incentive via the August 16th pay check.  
Out of the 68 participants, 18 were spouses and 50 were City/District employees.   
 

• Employee Review Team (ERT) 
Dawn Anderson was elected as ERT Chair and Jen Baiamonte was elected as Vice 
Chair for the 2013/2014 year.  Congratulations, Dawn & Jen!   
 
ERT will be using three subcommittees for the following projects:  Pay incentive 
policy recommendations, training/travel policy recommendations and 2013/2014 
wellness program planning.  
 
ERT is sponsoring an Evans night at the Rockies on Saturday, September 21st to 
attend the 6pm game.  If interested, please RSVP to Jen Baiamonte by August 16th 
at 5pm. 
 

• SAFETY Event Update 
The August 10th Event went off with great success. Approximately 250 people 
visited agency booths and demonstrations. Feedback forms where collected from 
both the agencies and participants of the event. The Safety event planning group 
will be conducting a debriefing in the next couple weeks to analyze the feedback, 
what worked and what did not work for the event. A brief update on the results 
will be given on the September 3rd monitoring report. 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 

• Infrastructure Updates 
 

2013 Seal Contract:  A-1 Chipseal / Rocky Mountain Pavement is currently in 
town completing infrared patching prior to the chip seal application.  The 
schedule is currently as follows: 
 Infrared Patching:  8/7/2013 – 8/13/2013 
 Chipseal:  8/15/2013 – 8/16/2013 

 
Locations: 

• 17th Avenue:  37th Street south to 42nd Street 
 Hunter’s Subdivision 

 
* Schedule could change.  I will keep you informed of any changes or updates. 

 
2013 Pavement Marking:  Kolbe Striping will mobilize in town on Monday, 
August 12th.  This work will consist of completing a re-stripe of all centerline, 
lane and edge striping within the city limits.  It will also include the addition 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=facebook+logo+images&qpvt=facebook+logo+images&FORM=IGRE


 
 

of thermoplastic symbols, crosswalks and stop bars throughout the 
city.  Project should be complete within a week of commencement.   

 
2013 Concrete Project:  This contract is at the Notice to Proceed stage with 
Naranjo Civil Constructors.  Once all contract documents are signed work will 
be scheduled.  Work is scheduled to take place in various locations 
throughout the city. 

 
2013 Asphalt Overlay Project:  This contract is at the Notice of Award stage 
with Martin   Marietta.  Once all contract documents are signed work 
will be scheduled.  Overlay locations is as follows: 
 11th Avenue:  34th Street to 32nd Street 
 Intersection of 37th Street / 17th Avenue 

 
• EVENTS 

 
 
 

 

SEPTEMBER 7, 2013 

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
Pancake Breakfast 8:00 – 10:00 

Enjoy sausage, pancakes, juice, coffee and all the fixin’s while enjoying Christian Rock Praise Band, “The 
Devil Dodgers” from Redeemer Lutheran Church.  

Parade 10:00 

Our famous EvansFest Parade winds its way from Fire Station #1, east on 40th St, around City Park and on to 
Riverside Park. Kids from all the Evans schools, marching bands and floats will “Tune In To Evans”. Parade 
Marshal, Jack Meakins, will lead the parade along with his grandchildren, all playing their favorite instruments.  

Family Activities 10:30 – 2:00 

Music, music, music as three bands perform, kids jump on the inflatables, pet animals in the petting zoo, see the 
car show and the pet contest, follow dance instructors, get their faces painted, play on real fire trucks and enjoy 
other kid-centric activities. Adults can enjoy these too and go for a little browsing in the vendor tents. 

Three bands will play in one hour segments after the parade: 

From 11:00 until noon listen to Jim & Daryl in FUBAR II. 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=facebook+logo+images&qpvt=facebook+logo+images&FORM=IGRE


 
 

Noon until 1:00 rock out with BEN PU & CREW. 

1:00 – 2:00  we’re proud to have THE JESS REDMON BAND. 

We’ll keep your spirits up and your toes tapping all afternoon! 

Food and Beer Garden 11:00 – 2:00 

Delicious food, cold beer, pop and water. Need we say more? 

Scavenger Hunt 2:00       NEW THIS YEAR 

Kids of all ages can follow the Pied Piper over to Riverside’s lake on the shore of the S. Platte River and hunt 
for great prizes. 

VISIT www.evansfest.org for more details and updates on the event.
 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=facebook+logo+images&qpvt=facebook+logo+images&FORM=IGRE
http://www.evansfest.org/


 
 

 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
DATE:   August 20, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  10.A 

   
SUBJECT:   Adjournment to Executive Session 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(e), City Council will adjourn into an Executive Session for the 
discussion of matters subject to negotiations.  

 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
N/A 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(e), I move to go into Executive Session for the discussion of 
matters subject to negotiations.”  

 



SEPTEMBER 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 1 2 3 4 5 

September Event Location Time 

3 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

7 EvansFest Riverside Park 8:00 AM - 2:00 PM 

17 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

5 NFRMPO September Meeting Johnstown 6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

10 City Council Work Session:    
CIP & AMP Budgets   

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

AUGUST 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

August Event Location Time 

5 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

6 National Night Out Evans 6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

10 City Safety & Awareness Event Evans Sam’s Club 9:00 AM - Noon 

13 Evans Open House Regarding 
Water Meter Systems  

Evans City Complex        
Banquet Hall 

Begins at 6:30 PM 

20 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

3 Groundbreaking for Riverside 
Library and Cultural Center  

3700 Golden Street, Evans  9:00 - 11:00 AM 

1 NFRMPO August Meeting Eaton Recreation Center     
224 1st Street 

6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

27 City Council Work Session: 
Budget Presentation on City 
Payroll + Supplies & Services  

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

October Event Location Time 

1 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

15 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

17 Government Agencies  
Meeting 

Aims Community  
College 

Begins at 7:00 AM 

3 NFRMPO September Meeting Loveland Council Cham-
bers 400 E. Third Street 

6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

OCTOBER 2013 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�
http://evansfest.org/�
http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�
http://www.cityofevans.org/police/national-night-out-registration-form�
http://www.cityofevans.org/police/community-safety-awareness-event�
http://www.cityofevans.org/utilitybilling/public-hearing-city-water-meter-systems�
http://www.cityofevans.org/utilitybilling/public-hearing-city-water-meter-systems�
http://www.cityofevans.org/utilitybilling/public-hearing-city-water-meter-systems�
http://www.cityofevans.org/utilitybilling/public-hearing-city-water-meter-systems�
http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�

	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	6.A Staff Report - Approval of Minutes
	August 5th Meeting Minutes
	6.B Staff Report Posting Requirements.com
	Resolution No. 28-2012 - Posting Requirements
	6.C Staff Report - 2013 Dist 6 Joint Use Agreement
	2013-2014 Joint Use Agreement
	Resolution No. 29-2013- Joint Use Agreement District 6

	NEW BUSINESS
	7.A Staff Report USRBell Oil
	CityUSR Application
	Chapter 19.44 - Approval of Special Uses.R508
	4101 Carson Aerial Map
	4101 Carson FLU Map
	4101 Carson Zoning Map
	Site and Landscape Plan
	Survey, including topo
	Planning Commission 8.5.13 Minutes
	Resolution No. 30-2013 Bell Oil USR
	7.B Staff Report Grant Application
	Staff Report-Roma
	Resolution

	7.C  Staff Report-Roma Restaurant Packet 
	Public Liquor Hearing Procedure
	Form DR8404-Co Liq License Application
	Floor Plans
	Findings Memo 
	Radius Maps
	Individual History Pages
	Affidavits of Postings
	Petition Affidavit 
	Petition


	7.D Staff Report-Lit'l Bit Bar & Grill
	Public Hearing Form.Liquor Hearings
	State Application +Indiv History Forms
	Floor Plan
	Findings Letter-Lit'l Bit
	Litl Bit-All Liquor Map
	Bldg / Fire Code Inspection
	City Biz License
	Background Memo
	 Indiv History Forms 
	City Forms




	REPORTS
	City Manager
	08.20.13 MR.pdf

	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	 EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT
	CITY COUNCIL CALENDAR



